
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 18, 2022              1 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, April 18, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 
at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. A Moment of Silence to Honor and Remember Former City Mayor, John Joyce  
 

4. Roll Call  
 

5. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

6. Approval of Agenda 
 

7. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or public may ask 
that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for discussion. All 
such requests will be granted.  
 

A. Regular Council Minutes – April 4, 2022 
B. Budget Workshop Notes – April 11, 2022 
C. Vendor’s List $32,033.84 
D. Budget Amendments  

 
8. Unfinished Business  

 
9. New Business 

E. Appointment to Cemetery Commission  
F. Revised Paving Options – Reith and Riley Quote for Streets  
G. Police Officer Sponsorship 

 
10. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 

H.  Accounts Payable Report (4/3/2022 – 4/18/2022)  

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St.  
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 
 
 
 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – April 18, 2022              2 

 

 I.  Payroll Reports (4/3/2022 – 4/18/2022)  
11.  City Attorney Report/Comment  

 
12.  City Clerk Report/Comment 
 
13.  City Manager Report/Comment   

 
14.  Finance Director Report/Comment 

 
15.  Department of Public Works Report/Comment 

J. DPW Monthly Report – March 2022 
 

16.  Police Department Report/Comment 
 K. Police Dept. Monthly Report – March 2022  
 

17. City Assessor  
 

18.  Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 L. DDA Meeting Packet – April 12, 2022  

 
19. Fire Department  

M. Fire Board Minutes – March 15, 2022 
N. Fire Board Budget Hearing – March 15, 2022  

 
20.  Housing Commission  

  
21.  Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  

 
22.  Adjournment  

 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 04.04.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

APRIL 4, 2022 @ 8:00PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

Mayor Emerick called the meeting to order at 8:01pm, then led the assembly in the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Chris Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Finance Director/Treasurer Jennie Duncan, 
Director of Public Works Dustin Moma, City Attorney James White, Downtown Development 
Authority Director Todd Bruggema, City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: John and Angela Hunter 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Ms. Szeliga.  
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A.  Regular Council Minutes – March 21, 2022 
B.  Vendor’s List $42,749.30 
C.  Budget Amendments 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the consent agenda as presented.  Support by Mayor 
Emerick. Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
D.  OHM – N. River Road Paving Proposal 
Council discussed the updated proposal with an emphasis on options 2 and 5A. Ms. Lockhart 
reminded council that the Osceola County Rural Task Force is contributing $219,000 to this 
project, and council has approved disbursing the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, 
roughly $196,000 to the project as well.  The balance must come from major roads, and due to 
the collapse of the city sewer line serving Smith Lumber at 6th and N. River, sewer funds can be 
tapped, as well.  Mr. Moma believes it is critical to put a 5” overlay from 7 Mile Road to Jefferson 
Street as presented in option 5a due to the extensive deterioration of the current surface.  N. 
River from Jefferson to US 10 would be done with chip and seal which will greatly extend the life 
of the current pavement.  This pavement is in much better condition than the section from 
Jefferson to 7 Mile. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to accept option 5a from the OHM proposal: a 5” 
mill and repave of N. River Road from 7 Mile Road to Jefferson Street, with chip and seal 
performed on N. River Road from Jefferson Street to US 10, for the amount of $535,000 to be 
funded as follows: $219,000 from the Osceola County Rural Task Force, $196,000 from ARPA 
funds, with the remaining $120,000 from the major road fund and the sewer fund.  Support by 
Mr. Duffy.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Mr. Hildebrand, Mr. Duffy and Mayor Emerick 
were in favor.  Mr. Elliott and Ms. Szeliga were opposed. 
 
 
 



2 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 04.04.2022 
 

New Business 
E.  First Street Paving Project 
Mr. Moma presented two bids for this project; one from Reith-Riley Construction and one from 
Central Asphalt; a third was solicited but never received. The Reith-Riley bid is considerably 
less and offers a descending scale if the city chooses to add on other areas to be paved. Both 
bids are predicated on milling and paving an area 24’ wide by 780’ long, roughly from the 
intersection of N. Cedar and W. 1st to the Housing Commission office building.  The Housing 
Commission has committed funding for 50% of the cost. Mr. Moma recommended addressing 
some of the worst streets in town in conjunction with 1st Street. Ms. Lockhart noted that the city 
has $60,000 budgeted in local road resurfacing. Mayor Emerick reminded Mr. Moma that the 
intersection of N. Pine and W. 6th was never resurfaced after the sewer line repair.  Motion by 
Mr. Duffy to accept the Reith-Riley bid to mill and pave W. 1st Street from N. Cedar to the office 
building (26’ X 780’) with 50% of the cost contributed by the Housing Commission; and adding 
W. 10th to S. Oak, W. Washington from N. Oak to N. River using current local street funds and 
the local street fund balance if needed; and S. Oak from the Pere Marquette trail to W. 11th 
using funds from the major street balance.  Support by Mayor Emerick.  Motion passed with all 
in favor. 
F.  Resolution 2022-05 Appointing City Clerk 
Mr. White and Ms. Fiebig have been working with the Michigan Attorney General’s (AG) office to 
finalize dates and language.  The AG prefers a different format so this resolution will supersede 
Resolution 2022-03.  The charter amendment will be placed on the November ballot rather than 
in August. Motion by Mr. Elliott to approve Resolution 2022-05 appointing rather than electing 
the city clerk.  Support by Mayor Emerick. Motion passed with a roll call vote: Duffy, Elliott, 
Emerick, Hildebrand and Szeliga in favor; none opposed. 
G. Resolution 2022-06 American Rescue Act Plan (ARPA) Funds 
This resolution authorizes spending the ARPA funds on the N. River Road repaving project.  
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve Resolution 2022-06 regarding the disbursement of ARPA 
funds for N. River. Support by Mr. Elliott.  Motion passed with a roll call vote: Elliott, Emerick, 
Hildebrand, Szeliga and Duffy in favor; none opposed. 
H.  Budget 2022-2023 (first review) 
Ms. Lockhart stated that this is the first review of the proposed budget and that staff will 
continue to work on it. She would like to have a budget workshop on Monday, April 11 at 
6:00pm. At that meeting, a redlined version will be provided as some funding is still uncertain.  
She would value any input prior to the budget workshop.  Discussion followed and no action 
was taken. 
 
Department/Informational Reports 
I.  Accounts Payable Report (3/22/2022 – 4/4/2022) 
J.  Payroll Reports (3/22/2022 – 4/4/2022) 
 
City Attorney Report/Comment 
Mr. White has had many conversations with the Michigan Attorney General’s office regarding 
the resolution and process to appoint rather than elect city clerk. He may not be available on 
April 15 for the McClellan closing, so will reschedule that for an earlier date. 
City Clerk Report/Comment 
Ms. Fiebig has placed the final tree order to fulfill the grant from the Muskegon River Watershed 
Assembly and is coordinating an Earth Day clean up with Lume. 
City Manager Report/Comment: 
Mr. Moma is getting bids to check the electrical at Riverside West in order to provide power to 
the park host site. T-ball will again be played at Riverside West and the cost to do so is minimal.   
Finance Director Report/Comment:  



3 
 

City of Evart Council Minutes 04.04.2022 
 

Ms. Duncan has been focused on developing the new budget while working with BS&A to 
change our chart of accounts. 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment:  
Mr. Moma is working with Lead Water Operator Patrick Muczynski and John Tanner of OHM 
Engineering on the MEDC grant. 
Police Department Report/Comment:  
Ms. Lockhart stated that Chief Beam is researching a MI Works program to pay for a new 
employee to attend the police academy, and this may be the best route to hire a new officer.   
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment: none 
  
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Todd Bruggema understands council’s decision on road repair and respects that they are trying 
to get the best use of citizens funds but hopes they are not shortchanging the N. River Street 
project.  Chip and seal just does not last long and if water or sewer repairs need to be made 
later, those areas tend to dip. He asked if these kinds of bids could be projected to the big 
screen to allow the audience to better understand what is being discussed.  He would like to see 
the police department slowing traffic on River Street to protect it, either with an electronic speed 
sign or by writing tickets. 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn.  Support by Mr. Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in 
favor. The meeting was adjourned at 8:56pm. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk 
 

 

 



1 
 

City of Evart City Council Budget Workshop 04.11.2022 
 

CITY OF EVART 
CITY COUNCIL BUDGET WORKSHOP 

Monday, April 11, 2022 @ 6:00pm 
Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

The workshop was opened at 6:00pm by Mayor Chris Emerick, who then led the assembly in 
the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Present: Dan Elliott, Mayor Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
Absent:  Sean Duffy 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Finance Director/Treasurer Jennie Duncan, 
Director of Public Works Dustin Moma, Chief of Police John Beam Jr., City Clerk Kathy Fiebig 
 
Guests: none 
 
Ms. Lockhart and Ms. Duncan walked council through the first draft of the budget, highlighting 
any significant increase or reduction in revenue and expense: 

• Major increase in revenue from housing commission 
• McClellan sale revenue could be used for parks, street, the airport, or to fund a grant 

writer 
• Miscellaneous revenue has been cut as it was very high in the last budget 
• Staff vacation pay: the city often pays out for unused time.  The consensus of the 

council is that staff should be encouraged to use the time. 
• Two elections in 2022 so clerk budget has increased (no elections in 2021) 
• Added postage for the treasurer’s notices, which have not been accounted for in past 

budgets 
• Raised expense line for the assessor and this may have to increase more 
• City Attorney salary is charged to three lines: council, police, water/sewer 
• Marijuana: any attorney fees on marijuana issues come from the licensing fees and 

these fees are restricted to such usage 
• The code enforcement line was reduced as Chief Beam hopes to use the new officer for 

code enforcement 
• Planning/Zoning increase due to hiring Williams and Work as consultants to the 

Planning Commission 
• City Hall: part of this covers the administrative assistant salary and the rest was 

predicated on what we actually spent last year; have included a new HVAC system as 
the existing system is 26 years old; drug testing costs have increased; publishing costs 
have always exceeded budgeted amounts, so this line was increased 

• Police: will not do Neighbor’s Night Out this year as it requires too much advance 
planning and the department is short staffed; Teresa will be out on medical leave but is 
training a temporary replacement; budget includes another part time civilian employee; 
Mr. Hildebrand questioned the vehicle repair line and Chief stated that they’ve been 
lucky and haven’t had to spend much so agreed to reduce it by $5000 

• Downtown Development Authority: the $20,000 line item contributes to the director 
salary.  This was a five-year commitment by the city that ends next year 

• LDFA: city is making payments to the LDFA pension plan which was underfunded and 
paid an extra $30,000 last year.  Ms. Lockhart has been advised to stop making extra 



2 
 

City of Evart City Council Budget Workshop 04.11.2022 
 

payments once the city hits the 70% funded point as the funds can be better utilized 
elsewhere. We are currently at roughly 68% 

• Building and grounds: most of this is for professional services from Shades of Green for 
mowing 

• Department of Public Works (DPW): director salary was increased; there have been 
additional equipment rentals, especially regarding the 9/7/2021 wind storm. 

• Airport: professional service were for brush removal and crack sealing 
• Brush line was high due to 9/7/2021 wind storm 
• Trees: high due to 9/7/2021 wind storm and now we need to grind the stumps.  City has 

never budgeted for tree maintenance or stump grinding and this needs to be corrected. 
• Fringe benefit line increased slightly as Ms. Lockhart hopes to hire a third employee for 

water and sewer 
• Splash Pad: cost of water is roughly $12,000/season and Ms. Lockhart and Mr. Moma 

are exploring ways to reduce this.  Mr. Hildebrand pointed out that some of the features 
are no longer working properly and reminded council that ongoing maintenance of the 
splash pad is critical 

 
Ms. Lockhart and Ms. Duncan will continue to refine the budget and will present a revised copy 
at the next regular council meeting on April 18, 2022. 
 
The budget workshop was closed at 8:12pm. 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig                               City Clerk 

 
 
 

 

 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 04/14/2022 01:15 PM
User: LISA
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/05/2022 - 04/18/2022

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

1,416.41 BARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR11823905075104/18/2022
627.67 CITY OF EVART00283905175104/18/2022

1,315.64 DEERE CREDIT, INC12003905275104/18/2022
1,789.07 DTE ENERGY05763905375104/18/2022

679.34 ELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC07223905475104/18/2022
195.17 ETNA SUPPLY03123905575104/18/2022
121.24 EVART PARTS PLUS17663905675104/18/2022
67.75 FILE SAFE, INC10253905775104/18/2022

1,997.60 KUBE PROPANE, LLC11193905875104/18/2022
77.00 MCLAREN CORPORATE SERVICES SYSTOC6073905975104/18/2022
600.00 MICHIGAN STATE POLICE4253906075104/18/2022

10,302.70 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063906175104/18/2022
116.25 RIETH-RILEY CONSTR CO INC - BR01233906275104/18/2022
340.00 SHORELINE POWER SERVICES, INC11173906375104/18/2022
73.97 SMITH LUMBER CO01293906475104/18/2022
107.00 SPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL15793906575104/18/2022
174.09 TELNET WORLDWIDE23003906675104/18/2022
923.52 WIELAND TRUCK CENTER-CLARE07763906775104/18/2022
363.90 XEROX CORPORATION18033906875104/18/2022

2,259.50 CONSUMERS ENERGY0024862(E)75104/18/2022
1,666.70 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA923863(E)75104/18/2022

V0.00 VOID923864(E)75104/18/2022
392.23 AMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS1456865(A)75104/18/2022
327.94 CHARTER/SPECTRUM328866(A)75104/18/2022
90.00 DRUG SCREEN PLUS921867(A)75104/18/2022

6,009.15 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730868(A)75104/18/2022

751 TOTALS:

32,033.84 Total of 25 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 1 Void Checks:
32,033.84 Total of 26 Checks:







AGENDA REPORT 

To:  Honorable Mayor Emerick and Council Members 

From:  Kathy Fiebig, City Clerk  

Date:  April 6, 2022 

Re:  Appointment to Cemetery Commission 

For:     Regular Council Meeting 04.18.2022 

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
Section 4.27 of the city charter establishes a cemetery commission consisting of at least three 
(3) members, one of whom shall be a member of the council.  The board currently has three 
members, with Sandra Szeliga serving on behalf of the council, but has been inactive for 
several years. 
 
Issues and Questions Specified 
Forest Hill Cemetery is a valuable asset to the city and would benefit from the oversight of an 
active Cemetery Commission.  Jennie Duncan has been managing the cemetery on behalf of 
the city for a number of years and is extremely knowledgeable regarding all issues.  She has 
volunteered to serve on the Cemetery Commission. 
 
Alternatives 
1.  Do nothing. 

 
Financial Impact 
None. 
 
Recommendation 
Appoint Jennie Duncan to the Cemetery Commission for a three-year term which will expire in 
2025. 
 
Attachments 
None. 
 



































CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/4Page
:

04/14/2022 01:24 PM
User: LISA
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/05/2022 - 04/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

565.87 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCEBARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR3905075104/18/2022

850.54 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39050

1,416.41 

239.96 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3905175104/18/2022

44.10 101-301-921.000UTILITIES39051

60.40 101-442-921.000UTILITIES39051

216.65 207-751-921.000UTILITIES39051

66.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES39051

627.67 

1,315.64 661-599-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDEERE CREDIT, INC3905275104/18/2022

423.14 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3905375104/18/2022

518.36 101-440-921.000UTILITIES39053

847.57 590-538-921.000UTILITIES39053

1,789.07 

679.34 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEELLEN'S EQUIPMENT, INC3905475104/18/2022

195.17 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESETNA SUPPLY3905575104/18/2022

84.51 590-538-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEEVART PARTS PLUS3905675104/18/2022

10.26 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES39056

26.47 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE39056

121.24 

22.58 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3905775104/18/2022

22.58 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39057

22.59 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39057

67.75 

1,133.11 101-441-921.000UTILITIESKUBE PROPANE, LLC3905875104/18/2022

864.49 101-442-921.000UTILITIES39058

1,997.60 

77.00 101-301-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGMCLAREN CORPORATE SERVICES SYSTOC3905975104/18/2022

600.00 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/ITMICHIGAN STATE POLICE3906075104/18/2022

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393906175104/18/2022



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/4Page
:

04/14/2022 01:24 PM
User: LISA
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/05/2022 - 04/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

10,058.70 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39061

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39061

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES39061

10,302.70 

116.25 203-451-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCERIETH-RILEY CONSTR CO INC - BR3906275104/18/2022

340.00 591-547-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESSHORELINE POWER SERVICES, INC3906375104/18/2022

73.97 101-301-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCESMITH LUMBER CO3906475104/18/2022

107.00 101-301-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGSPECTRUM HEALTH OCCUPATIONAL3906575104/18/2022

174.09 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONSTELNET WORLDWIDE3906675104/18/2022

923.52 661-599-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEWIELAND TRUCK CENTER-CLARE3906775104/18/2022

107.56 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION3906875104/18/2022

41.23 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT39068

107.56 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING39068

107.55 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING39068

363.90 

438.42 101-441-921.000UTILITIESCONSUMERS ENERGY862(E)75104/18/2022

1,768.03 101-448-921.000UTILITIES862(E)

24.39 202-460-921.000UTILITIES862(E)

28.66 591-546-921.000UTILITIES862(E)

2,259.50 

120.00 101-172-957.000EDUCATION AND TRAININGFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA863(E)75104/18/2022

54.88 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)

8.70 101-265-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING863(E)

5.30 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONS863(E)

76.06 101-301-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES863(E)

150.00 101-301-746.000Community Policing Fund863(E)

713.99 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT863(E)

25.97 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)

339.93 101-441-768.000REIMBURSEMENT EXPENSE863(E)

34.16 590-537-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)

5.30 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS863(E)

20.73 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/4Page
:

04/14/2022 01:24 PM
User: LISA
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/05/2022 - 04/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

34.16 591-545-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)

5.29 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS863(E)

51.50 591-545-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE863(E)

20.73 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES863(E)

1,666.70 

** VOIDED **** VOIDED **VOID864(E)75104/18/2022

392.23 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESAMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS865(A)75104/18/2022

49.33 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSCHARTER/SPECTRUM866(A)75104/18/2022

129.98 101-301-850.000COMMUNICATIONS866(A)

16.67 101-441-850.000COMMUNICATIONS866(A)

65.98 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS866(A)

65.98 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS866(A)

327.94 

30.00 101-441-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTINGDRUG SCREEN PLUS867(A)75104/18/2022

30.00 590-537-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING867(A)

30.00 591-545-840.000PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING867(A)

90.00 

902.53 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.868(A)75104/18/2022

5,106.62 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL868(A)

6,009.15 

        467.24 UTILITIES101-301-921.000
        902.53 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000
        304.07 COMMUNICATIONS101-301-850.000
        184.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-301-840.000
        150.00 Community Policing Fund101-301-746.000
         76.06 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000
        239.96 UTILITIES101-265-921.000
        107.56 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000
         54.63 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000
         22.58 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000
          8.70 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-265-741.000
         54.88 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000
        120.00 EDUCATION AND TRAINING101-172-957.000

--- GL TOTALS --- 

32,033.84 TOTAL OF 26 CHECKS (1 voided)TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/4Page
:

04/14/2022 01:24 PM
User: LISA
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 04/05/2022 - 04/18/2022
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

     32,033.84 TOTAL
      1,315.64 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED661-599-970.100
      2,479.87 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE661-599-930.000
      5,106.62 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000
         10.26 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000
        340.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-547-801.000
         28.66 UTILITIES591-546-921.000
         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000
        215.90 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000
         51.50 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE591-545-955.000
        107.55 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000
         71.27 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000
         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING591-545-840.000
         22.59 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000
         34.16 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-545-740.000
         84.51 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE590-538-930.000
        847.57 UTILITIES590-538-921.000
         57.50 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000
        412.96 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000
        107.56 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000
         71.28 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000
         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING590-537-840.000
         22.58 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000
         34.16 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-537-740.000
         66.56 UTILITIES208-757-921.000
        216.65 UTILITIES207-751-921.000
        116.25 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE203-451-930.000
         24.39 UTILITIES202-460-921.000
     10,058.70 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000
      1,768.03 UTILITIES101-448-921.000
        924.89 UTILITIES101-442-921.000
      1,571.53 UTILITIES101-441-921.000
         16.67 COMMUNICATIONS101-441-850.000
         30.00 PHYSICALS/DRUG TESTING101-441-840.000
        129.00 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000
        339.93 REIMBURSEMENT EXPENSE101-441-768.000
        518.36 UTILITIES101-440-921.000
         25.97 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000
      1,355.22 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000
        565.87 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE101-301-931.000
         73.97 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-301-930.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 04/05/2022 to 04/18/2022 

04/14/2022 01:30 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Open0.00112.41112.41MISDU          2330475004/06/2022

Open0.00112.41112.41MISDU          2330575004/13/2022

Cleared826.780.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD649775004/06/2022

Cleared231.090.00264.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD649875004/06/2022

Cleared698.450.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD649975004/06/2022

Cleared169.430.00192.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD650075004/06/2022

Cleared4.340.00170.22 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD650175004/06/2022

Cleared264.300.00300.00 GAGLIARDO, ANOTHONY          DD650275004/06/2022

Cleared1,087.520.001,253.75 KIRWIN, DAVID          DD650375004/06/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD650475004/06/2022

Cleared570.740.00949.41 MARTIN, DALE          DD650575004/06/2022

Cleared2.630.002.84 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD650675004/06/2022

Cleared140.200.00187.50 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD650775004/06/2022

Cleared1,034.260.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD650875004/06/2022

Cleared655.670.001,038.20 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD650975004/06/2022

Cleared589.090.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD651075004/06/2022

Cleared609.040.00744.28 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD651175004/06/2022

Cleared151.350.00163.88 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD651275004/06/2022

Cleared59.200.0067.20 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD651375004/06/2022

Cleared723.670.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD651475004/06/2022

Cleared559.170.00829.81 ZINGER, ADAM          DD651575004/06/2022

Cleared826.790.001,250.00 BEAM, JOHN          DD652075004/13/2022

Cleared179.720.00204.00 CLARK, RILEE N         DD652175004/13/2022

Cleared698.430.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD652275004/13/2022

Cleared169.430.00192.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD652375004/13/2022

Cleared1.340.00167.22 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD652475004/13/2022

Cleared410.420.00493.50 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD652575004/13/2022

Cleared1,271.790.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD652675004/13/2022

Cleared570.460.00946.40 MARTIN, DALE          DD652775004/13/2022

Cleared140.180.00187.50 MCLACHLAN-WOOSLEY, ROSEMARY M         DD652875004/13/2022



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 04/05/2022 to 04/18/2022 

04/14/2022 01:30 PM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared1,034.250.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD652975004/13/2022

Cleared892.760.001,345.76 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD653075004/13/2022

Cleared589.080.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD653175004/13/2022

Cleared631.900.00763.19 NEWSOME, LISA R         DD653275004/13/2022

Cleared361.800.00396.75 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD653375004/13/2022

Cleared56.160.0063.75 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD653475004/13/2022

Cleared723.680.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD653575004/13/2022

Cleared493.220.00743.20 ZINGER, ADAM          DD653675004/13/2022

Open0.002,742.022,742.02FEDERAL 941          EFT75475004/06/2022

Open0.002,676.892,676.89FEDERAL 941          EFT75775004/13/2022

38

2

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

18,700.135,643.7331,306.29Number of Checks:  040Totals:









 
 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

 

Community Events 
 

RUN HIDE FIGHT and Threat Guide Training was provided to the entire staff of the Evart Police School District by 
Police Chief John Beam Jr. and Fire Department Chief Helmer. 

 
K9 Officer Patrick McClure has resigned from the Evart Police Department to pursue a career with the Michigan 

State Police.  The Evart City Council voted to allow K9 Blue to retire and live with Officer McClure and his family. 
 

Trainings 
 

City Manager, Pepper Lockhart, successfully completed four levels of Criminal Justice Agency 
Security Awareness training.  These courses provide instruction on maintaining security for property 

(physical or digital), data (physical or digital), and how data in transit and data at rest, needs to be 
protected and disseminated in accordance with the Criminal Justice Information System. 

 
Staffing 

 
The Evart Police Department has hired Rose Woosley as a part-time administrative assistant.  Rose 
has an extensive background as a 911 dispatcher, and she worked for the Michigan Department of 

Natural Resources during the Flint water crisis.  Rose will be trained to share Teresa’s duties.  
 

Chief Beam was re-elected as the Alternate Executive Board Member for the Michigan Association 
of Chiefs of Police for the 5th year in a row. 

 
 

Department Roster 
 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

Full Time Police Officer Chad Wilson 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 
 
 

Administrative Staff 
Name Title 
Teresa Swift-Eckert Administrative Assistant 
Rose Woosley Administrative Assistant 
Emma Hubbard Office Assistant 
Rilee Clark Office Assistant 

 
 
 

 

March 2022 



 
Activities Breakdown by Officer 
 
Name Activity Activity Count  

Beam, John Jr. Assist Citizen 1  

Assist DHS 2  

Assist Evart Public School 2  

Assist OCSD 3  

Burglary 2  

Follow-Up 6  

Property Check 4  

Suspicious Person 1  

Suspicious Vehicle 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 22  

Higgins, JJ Assist Citizen 2  

Assist OCSD 6  

Assist Police Agency 3  

Attempt to Locate 15  

Civil Complaint 3  

Juvenile Complaint 2  

Miscellaneous Criminal Offense 2  

Property Check 87  

Stationary Radar 6  

Suspicious Person 3  

Suspicious Situation 3  

Traffic Stop Citation 4  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 4  

Activity Categories Total Count: 140  

McClure, Patrick Assist MSP 1  

Assist OCSD 2  

Felony Arrest 1  

Juvenile Complaint 1  

Misdemeanor Arrest 5  

Property Check 5  

Stationary Radar 5  

Suspicious Person 1  

Suspicious Situation 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 24  

Wilson, Chad Abuse/Neglect Family 1  

 



Accident - PD 4  

Accident - Private Property 1  

Assault 3  

Assist Citizen 2  

Assist DHS 7  

Assist Fire 3  

Assist OCSD 2  

Check Well Being 3  

Civil Complaint 2  

Criminal Sexual Conduct 3  

Domestic 3  

Fail to Pay 2  

Follow-Up 42  

Foot Patrol 2  

Found Property 2  

Juvenile Complaint 3  

MDOP 1  

Ordinance Violation - Warning 6  

Property Check 35  

Runaway 3  

Stationary Radar 2  

Suspicious Person 1  

Suspicious Situation 3  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 5  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 2  

Trespassing 1  

Vehicle Patrol 20  

Activity Categories Total Count: 164  
 

 
Incident Breakout Report 
 
   
 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 22 

Higgins, JJ 140 

McClure, Patrick 24 

Wilson, Chad 164 

TOTAL: 350 
 

 

  
 

 



 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 6 

Wilson, Chad 1 

Higgins, JJ 3 

TOTAL: 10 
 

 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 5 

Assist DHS 5 

Assist Evart Public School 1 

Assist Fire 1 

Assist MSP 1 

Assist OCSD 6 

Assist Police Agency 1 

TOTAL: 20 
 

 

 
 ACCIDENTS  

TYPE NUMBER OF ACCIDENTS 

Accident - PD 3 

Accident - Private Property 1 

TOTAL: 4 
 

   

     
 TRAFFIC 

VIOLATIONS 
 

OFFICER Traffic 
Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop 
Citation 

Traffic Stop 
Verbal Warning 

Higgins, JJ 0 2 3 

McClure, Patrick 1 0 1 

Wilson, Chad 6 1 1 

TOTAL: 7 3 5 
 

  

     
 ORDINANCE 

VIOLATIONS 
  

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Wilson, Chad Ordinance Violation - Warning 6 

TOTAL: 6 
 

 

 
 



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday April 12th, 2022 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order  

2. Attendance  

3. Introduction of Guests  

4. Citizen Comments  

5. Approval of Agenda  

6. Approval of March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes 

7. Approval of Vendor List for March 2022 

8. President’s Comments 

9. Director’s Comments  

10. City Manager’s Comments  

11. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market Report 

b. Pop-Up 

c. Business Recruitment Primer-draft 

Design 

a. SBEI 

b. Benches/Bike Racks  

c. Way Finding Signage (paused) 

Promotion 

a. Shop Local 

b. Summer Arts Series 

i. Point Person (need to be able to help with set up, take down be available during 

performance for any issues or questions which may arise.) 

1. Bob Marshall Band July 2, 2022  

2. Jake Slater August 20, 2022 

ii. Other performers for balance of 2022 funds 

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting  

b. Volunteers 

12. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 

b. New Business Welcome 

c. Hometown Decorations and Display 2022 - 2024 Contract (Christmas Decorations Approval) 

 



 

13. New Business  

a. MS Accreditation Process 

b. Main Street Small Business Grant for Technology 

c. DDA Board Self-Assessment 

d. Direction/Projects Prioritized 

e. T Mobile Grant 

f. Evart 150 yr Celebration 

g. Design projects to consider 

i. Sound Garden 

ii. Public Bike Repair Station 

iii. Selfie Photo Spot(s) 

iv. Picnic tables lot by 6th & Main 

v.  

h.  

i.  

 

14. Citizen’s Comments  

15. Adjournment  



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday March 8, 2021 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:02am 
 

2. Attendance: Alan Bengry, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Erica Henry, Shannon Schmidt, Pepper 
Lockhart, Todd Bruggema 
Absent: Molly Cataldo, Sandy Szeliga, Jason O’Dell  

 
3. Guests: John Hunter 

4. Citizen Comments: None 

5. Approval of agenda as presented. 

6. Moved by Salinas, supported by Lockhart for approval of February 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 
7. Moved by Salinas, supported by Schmidt for approval of Vendor List for February 2022 in the amount 

of $4,464.81. 
Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 
 

8. President’s Comments: Project Contact for Grant at MACC was switched to Todd Bruggema. 
 
9. Director’s Comments: Glad to be on board.  Lot of reading and questions.  Director Training with 

Laura and Leigh will be on March 14th. Main Street Conference is May 16-18, 2022 and T. Bruggema 
was directed to register as part of our responsibility as a Main Street Community.  MMS/MEDC is 
offering an Optimize Main Street grant and Evart is in the 3rd round.  The grant award is up to $2500 
per awarded applicant.  MMS district business are eligible and up to 5 can be nominated. Application 
period is April 11-29 with award announcement on May 6.  Pandemic relief grant for impacted 
businesses is open now through March 31.  The business needs to apply personally and T. Bruggema 
will assist them if needed.  Schmidt will send out a notice via the text/email alert system. 

 
10. City Manager’s Comments: Sixth and Main asked for some bike racks on the vacant property across 

from the restaurant. Todd Bruggema is already making progress after his first week.  The city is happy 
to be working with him. 

 
11. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 
a. Farmers Market:  A. Hunter is attending the MIFMA conference today and tomorrow.  J. Hunter 

spoke on her behalf and asked some general ‘housekeeping’ questions on processes for this new 
season. Vendor packet is updated and available for 2022.  August 27th, Sand Bobs will play at the 
market as an in-kind donation for their time. J. Hunter shared that one of the market vendors passed 
away this past week. 

b. Pop-Up: Essner commented that the contract for the Pop-up should be updated to include a 
cleaning deposit.  Henry had someone contact her after the Cadillac News article came out in the 



March 1st edition. 
c. Business Recruitment Primer: Fiebig has most of the narrative finalized.  We are waiting to hear 

the final review from the state MMS team. 
 
Design 

a. SBEI 
b. Benches/Bike Racks: Ferris students are working on some bike racks. 
c. Way Finding Signage:   

 
 

Promotion 
a. Shop Local 
b. Summer Arts Series: Bob Marshall Band Scheduled for July 2. 2022 @ Evart Depot 7pm-9pm. 

Jake Slater Scheduled for August 20, 2022 @ Evart Depot after 5:30pm.  We are still waiting 
for the contract. 

 
Organization 

a. Board Recruiting 
b. Volunteers 

 
13. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan: Bengry and Brugemma have reviewed the 
plans.  Bengry will set up a time for us to meet via zoom with Brad from Williams & Works. 

b. New Business Welcome 
  

14. New Business  

a. Hometown Decorations and Display 2022-2024 Contract:  Lockhart will work with City Council 
to see if the city will handle decorations in-house or go with a contracted display.  DDA/MMS 
board is open to either option. 

b. Laptop purchase: Motion by Essner, supported by Henry to approve the up to $2,000 for the 
purchase of a laptop for the DDA/MMS director. 
Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

c. Board resignation:   S. Schmidt stated her intention to resign from the DDA/MMS Board.  She 
will be writing her letter of resignation to the City Council. 
 

15. Citizen’s Comments:  None 
 
16. Motion made by Salinas, supported by Lockhart to adjourn at 9:16am. 

Ayes:  7  Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  June-Marie Essner, secretary 



















Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board Meeting 

March 15, 2022 @ 5:30 PM 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer at 5:37 pm. 

ROLL CALL:  Diane Brackett – Orient Township, Gary Hammer – Evart Township, 
Dan Elliott – City of Evart, Sherri Bancroft – Osceola Township, Bev Mills – Sylvan 
Township.  

GUESTS: Shane Helmer, Angie Cushman, Travis Douglas 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: None 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TWP, 2ND BY SYLVAN TWP to amend and approve the 
agenda by adding New Business #5 Truck Box.  MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2nd by ORIENT TWP to approve the consent agenda 
with the approval of the payment of bills, treasurers report, and February 8, 
2022 regular meeting minutes. MOTION PASSED 

General Checking, $13,826.16, High Yield Savings, $383,243.78, Grand Total 
$383,243.78.  Total bills paid out $31,857.20. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

1. Paid Staff Monthly Update:  Shane gave the board the month of 
February paid staff update and run report. Shane stated that he 
made some adjustments with the payroll, and is doing some 
adjustments for the per call rate, and how many staff are on each 
day, for the month. 



 

2. Update on Staffing and Training: Shane stated that we have hired 
3 more employees, 2 are stay at home moms, and one is an EMT, 
and one is FF1 and 2 and EMT trained, and the 3rd has no training 
at all. Travis is working on the explorer program and we are going 
to be doing a recruiting process to see if we could get some more 
involved. Shane stated that he has made some changes on the 
staffing, and he stated that the first 3 months, there were some 
days that there was a firefighter and medical on call, and in the 
next 3 months it will only be 1 each day, 7 days a week. He also 
stated that the school safety program is now under the police 
department protocol, and is underway of doing the safety training 
for the entire school, and will be the only school in the area that 
will be fully trained with the entire staff. 

 

New Business:  

1. Budget Amendments: Shane gave the board a budget 
amendment that needed to be approved.  

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TWP, 2ND BY CITY OF EVART to approve the budget 
amendment as written with the Osceola Twp also signing the amendment. 
MOTION PASSED. 

2. Monthly Statistics: Shane presented the board with the monthly 
stats for the month of February. Shane stated that we are at 109 
calls for the year, that is up quite a bit higher than normal.  
 

3. Approval of EMS CE sponsorship: Shane explained that he would 
like to be able to do a CE sponsor and be able to teach classes at 
the department. There is no fee for the sponsorship. 

4. Approval of EMS initial Education: 



MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY OSCEOLA TWP to approve Shane for 
applying for the CE Sponsorship and Initial Education. MOTION PASSED. 

 

 

 

5. Truck Box: Shane stated that he said the Brush 1 is up for 
replacement and with discussion with the guys in the department, 
they do not think they want to get rid of it.  They would like to 
add a box on the back, and still have the skid unit in the center of 
it. One of the firefighters would like to buy the flat bed portion, 
and then add the box on the truck and skid unit.  

MOTION BY OSCEOLA TWP, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP to spend $12,000 to remove the 
flatbed, and add a utility box on the back, and paint, and letter the box on Brush 
1.   

ROLL CALL: SYLVAN TWP – YES, ORIENT TWP –YES, EVART OF EVART – YES, 
EVART TWP – YES, OSCEOLA TWP – YES. MOTION PASSED. 

 

Citizens Comments: None 

Fire Chief Report:  Shane showed the board the new extrication tools that arrived 
today, and gave the board a demonstration of them being battery operated. 
There is a cutter, spreader and a ram, all from a grant from the USDA.  The next 
grant he would like to look into is for a generator. Shane stated that the new truck 
payment is due next month. Shane stated that he has been able to get the phone 
bill reduced and the WIFI is also been lowered because of the new internet 
provider. 

 

Next  Board Meeting: April 12, 2022 @ 4:30pm  



 

 

MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD MEETING.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP, to adjourn the meeting @ 6:46pm 
MOTION PASSED 

Angela Cushman 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

 

 

 



Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board  

Budget Hearing Meeting 

March 15, 2022 @ 7 PM 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer 7:01pm. Chairman Hammer 
thanked all guests for attending the budget hearing meeting.  

ROLL CALL: Evart Township – Present, Orient Township – Present,  Osceola 
Township - Present, Sylvan Township - Present, City of Evart – Present. 

Guests: Shane Helmer – Fire Chief, Angie Cushman - FD Clerk, Denise Custer - 
Evart Twp., Doug Derscheid – Evart Twp., Sue Morgan – Orient Twp., Angie 
Reagan – Sylvan Twp., Jeff Reagan – Sylvan Twp., Terry Pritchard – Sylvan Twp., 
Jesse Hyden EFD, Travis Douglas EFD. 

CITIZENS COMMENTS: None 

Amendments to and approval of the Agenda. 

MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS WRITTEN. MOTION PASSED. 

Chairman Hammer opened the budget hearing at 7:06pm and had Chief Helmer 
explain the budget for the 2022-23 budget years. Shane explained the new line 
items that needed to be added, with the new gear replacement, and a timeline of 
those scheduled plans to be replaced, and also the grants we have received from 
the USDA and any adjustments made to the budget from last year.  

Questions: 

 Angie Reagan asked what the $10,000 misc expense was in the budget.  



Shane explained that it is for any legal opinions or anything we may need in the 
future for expansions.  

Angie Reagan asked why the increase in wages went from $21,000 to $51,000, 
was that for the on call staff that was started in January.  

Shane stated yes that was the adjustment made to accommodate the increase in 
wages. 

Terry Pritchard asked how that was going with the on call staff.  

Shane stated that it has began January 1, and there has been some adjustments 
made, so we allowed 5 extra days where there was 2 staff on, and beginning in 
April through June, it will only be 1 paid staff member on.  

Shane also stated that the response time is excellent, and that will help with our 
ISO rating down. Shane stated that the school has initiated the school safety plan 
and if we continue with the staff, it will benefit us, as they will help out with 
anything the school needs for training and more.  

Shane also stated that staff is also beginning to go to businesses around town and 
make a plan for the business, in case of a fire or gas leak, there will be a MSDS 
sheet and plan in place for every business.   

Shane also stated that the fuel prices has increased, and right now we are setting 
very good for the start of the year and will update as needed throughout the year. 

Terry Pritchard asked if the FD received any of the ARCA funds from the Fed 
Government.  

Shane stated that we did get 1st responder premium pay, and payroll adjustment, 
and all the PPE items refunded at the beginning of the Pandemic. But no other 
funds have been given.  

Shane showed the attendees all the new extrication tools that were delivered 
today, that are all battery operated, and there will be no hoses and hydraulics 
needed. 



Jeff Reagan asked if they came with inverters for the trucks.  
 

Shane stated yes, they also have a daisy chain system for charging, and each of 
the batteries is interchangeable. The batteries are smart batteries, and they will 
signal when they have an issue, and they cost around $600.  

Shane stated that the PPE gear is supposed to be delivered in March early April, 
and that is provided by the USDA grant also. 

Shane stated that the proposed budget is $397,900.00 for 2022-23. 

Sherri Bancroft asked if the foam had any refunds. 

Shane stated no, it was not allowed.  

Chairman Hammer called a recess for the public hearing at 7:23pm. 

Chairman Hammer resumed the public hearing at 7:25pm. 

Angie Reagan asked about the building maintenance from a board member. 

Shane stated it is for maintaining anything that building needs to be currently 
maintained. The next budget will need to be higher for the cement replacement 
and lighting.  

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY OSCEOLA TWP to close the public hearing for 
the Evart Fire Department 2022-23 budget at 7:28pm. MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP to pass the resolution to adopt the 
Evart Fire Department 2022-23 budget as presented. 

RESOLUTION READ BY FIRE DEPARTMENT CLERK. 

ROLL CALL: 

SYLVAN TWP. –YES, ORIENT TWP. – YES, OSCEOLA TWP. – YES, EVART TWP. – 
YES, CITY OF EVART – YES. 

MOTION PASSED. 



Citizen’s comments: Doug Derscheid, Evart Township, asked who our auditor was 
for the Fire Department. Weinlander Fitzhugh is our current auditor for the past 
8-9 years. 

Shane stated that there had been a misunderstanding with the disbursement 
checks from each of the entities, and that there will be a letter of understanding 
in the future with the budget payments.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY ORIENT TWP, to adjourn the Budget Hearing at 
7:38pm. MOTION PASSED. 

Next Meeting Date: April 12, 2022 @ 4:30pm 

 MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD MEEING.  

 

ANGELA CUSHMAN 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.wf-cpas.com/
https://www.wf-cpas.com/


 

 

 

 


	3e05f3b2-f25a-42bc-9193-c9f71d8b7c6d.pdf
	Community Events
	Trainings
	Department Roster


